

Minutes of the Parish Council meeting held on Wednesday 14th. December 2022 at 7pm in the Village Hall.

Present: Cllrs M. Gibson (Chairman), C. Thorne (Vice-Chairman), A. Gardner, J. Pollock and Kevin B. Money (Clerk to Parish Council). There were 2 members of the public present.

188/2022 Chairman's welcome. The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting

189/2022 Apologies for Absence were received from ECC Cllr W. Stamp, MDC Cllrs P. Channer, M. Helm and Cllr R. Millett

190/2022 **Declaration of Interest**

To declare any Pecuniary, Registerable or non-Registerable Interest relating to items on the agenda Cllr M. Gibson declared an interest in item 202/2022 (2)

Cllr C. Thorne declared an interest in item 203/2022 (c)

191/2022 Minutes

To confirm and sign the Minutes of the meeting of the Parish Council Meeting held on 23rd. November 2022. All Agreed

To confirm and sign the Minutes of the Employment meeting of the Parish Council Meeting held on 23rd. November 2022. All Agreed

192/2022 Chairman's report and any update since last meeting

We have had another report of damage to the seawall just to the west of Sea View Promenade. This is an area where a number of areas of damage have been repaired already this year. It is also an area where the state of the seawall shows up as poor on flood risk assessments. This is on the village side of the Wade and consequently has implications for most of the community if this ongoing deterioration continues. The current damage has been reported (not just by me) and photographs sent to the Environment Agency. I have had a reply back stating that they are aware of the damage and are assessing how best to repair it. I await a further update!

The last couple of weeks have seen some very cold weather including overnight frost and freezing fog. Main Road has been gritted as is normal but no other roads are. I have stepped up efforts to get our stock of rock salt out into the community with Sea View estate leading the way on this. There has also been a suggestion from elsewhere in the village that maybe we should have a salt bin perhaps somewhere near the viewing platform which would enable residents to get a barrow of salt when needed. Views on that suggestion would be useful.

Essex County Councillors Report – ECC CIIr Wendy Stamp

a) Update on Locality Fund application – Parish Clerk

The Clerk informed the meeting that after the invoice to Whitehall Direct is paid then he will reclaim the agreed locality funding from ECC.

District Councillor/s Report - MDC Cllr Penny Channer

Cllr P. Channer supplied at report including November and December 2022.

The report can be found at https://stlawrencepc.co.uk/

195/2022 **CCTV** – Damage to camera

The Chairman informed the meeting that following the reported damage to the CCTV system, HD Security have made an assessment. It may be possible to get inside the camera to try to redress the ingress of water / condensation. However, there would be no guarantee that it would be possible to achieve this. The cost of this would be £120+. The alternative would be a new camera at approximately £300. In either case access is a major issue as the position of the light makes it difficult to get ladders safely onto the pole. At some stage a new pole, with the correct mechanism to lower it for maintenance is going to be needed. This will cost well in excess of £1000, plus a concrete base. The computer part of the CCTV system is also likely to need replacing in the next couple of years. In addition, access to the system has been upgraded.

The Clerk to contact A&J Lighting to liaise with a service visit of the CCTV

196/2022 Public Participation Session with Respect to items on the agenda

a) St. Lawrence Residents Association report from the Chairman of the RA.

A total maximum time of <u>20 minutes</u> is allowed for all public participation sessions

On the Facebook page an item about a "Dog Warden" was mentioned. No further action by the

On the Facebook page an item about a "Dog Warden" was mentioned. No further action by the Council until it is raised by residents. Again, it was mentioned that residents should keep their dogs on a leash.

Following item 196/2022 there is no more public participation in the Council meeting

197/2022 Representative Reports

a) Greening of the village - To receive a written report from Cllr C. Thorne

Cllr C. Thorne supplied a report prior to the meeting. It read:

With the help of Chris Millett, we have taken down the Tommy memorial and the poppies and have put them in to storage in the Portacabin.

The new Christmas lights have been purchased and we have installed them on to the tree in the children's play area and the dinghy planter, this should help in making that area feel more festive, which I feel is just as important now as in the previous few years.

The tree that was planted earlier in the year as part of the Queens green canopy campaign is standing up to the weather as is the one recently planted by the St Lawrence WI.

We still intend to purchase some winter plants to brighten up the Dinghy.

- **b)** Asset Management report To receive a written update report from Cllr C. Thorne Cllr C. Thorne supplied a report prior to the meeting. It read:
 - 1. Play equipment: 14-12-2022: The general state of condition is good.
 - **2.** <u>Toddler Multiplay equipment</u>. 26/10/22: Please see attached documents. <u>14-12-2022</u>: We are now in possession of estimates from 2 suppliers for this equipment
 - **3.** Play Area Gate:26/10/22: The latch has been removed from the gate, and hopefully now meets the disability requirements. The condition of the equipment is as before. 14-12-2022: As before
 - 4. Jubilee Field: 14-12-2022: As before
 - **5. Basketball equipment**: 14-12-2022: We now have 2 estimates for new equipment.
 - **6.** Portacabin in Play area: It is in a poor state of repair in some aspects. 26/10/22: Please see attached prices from A S Lipscombe & S & D Maintenance, for consideration. 14-12-2022: We now have 2 Estimates for this work, as above. And now have answers to some questions raised on their specifications. We are still waiting on an answer from S & D Maintenance regarding the cost on increasing the depth of foundation pads to 500 mm deep.
 - Key Holders: Marian Gibson. Chris Thorne, Rosemary Millett
 - 7. <u>Car park</u>: <u>14-12-2022</u>: is in a sound condition.
 - 8. <u>Signage</u>: The Jubilee Field car park is still without a Sign. <u>23-11-2022: The sign board has now been ordered from Whitehill Direct.</u> And we have made a saving of £100.00 on the original estimated cost. Plus a Grant of £500.00 from ECC. <u>14-12-2022:</u> The header panel has now been delivered by the company and we have been promised the delivery of the main board in early January 2023.
 - 9. <u>Hedges</u>: 26/10/22: As agreed at the last meeting, R Garwood has been instructed to reduce the height of the hedge adjacent to the play area/ village hall. <u>14-12-2022</u>: This work has now been carried out.
 - 10. <u>River Viewing Shelter</u>: 26/10/22: We require the nomination of contractors to obtain prices, can we have some recommendations please, and perhaps put out on our Facebook page that contractors are required to price this item. <u>14-12-2022</u>: We have received some feedback from our Facebook page, but to date NO enquires from Decorating contractors. These contractors are required as a matter of some urgency so that we can form our budget costings
 - 11. <u>Dog Bins</u>: 26/10/22: It was suggested at the last meeting to move the lower Dog bin in the jubilee field and place it nearer to the main gate, is this agreeable? If so, we will obtain a costing. <u>23-11-2022</u>: This is ongoing. We have also been asked to contact Gerry Lewsey regarding the

- Dog Bin situation in Seaway, hopefully to get agreement on the siting of the previously requested and purchased, new bin. <u>14-12-2022:</u> I have spoken to Gerry Lewsey, but he is NOT aware on any agreement on residents on this matter.
- 12. <u>CCTV Equipment</u>: HD Security, have raised a query on the mast that supports the camera that is placed in the corner of the play area. They have stated that the mast is not of the correct type for that situation. This is an area that we will have to closely look into for future replacement/renewal. <u>14-12-2022</u>: This matter has raised its head again this month as we had to call in HD security to adjust the angle of the camera and to look at the reason for fogging of the image on screen. The seal to the camera is apparently failing and will require replacement; a Costing for this will follow in due course. Key Holders: CCTV Room- Marian Gibson, Christopher Thorne, Rosemary Millet. John Pollock (temporary whilst R M is away). CCTV Cabinet- Marian Gibson. Rosemary Millet, Christopher Thorne, John Pollock (temporary whilst R M is away)
- 13. Table Tennis Table (external by Water sports Club): This is in a sound condition.
- 14. Goal Posts: These are in a reasonable state of repair.
- 15. Field gates main entrance to Jubilee Field: These are in reasonable state of repair.
- 16. Village Sign adjacent to Bradwell road: Is in sound condition.
- 17. SLPC display Notice board (opposite Stone Pub): Is in sound condition
- 18. <u>SLPC display Notice board (by Dairy Stores):</u> Is in a sound condition.
- **19.** New equipment for older children: Please see Estimate from Playdale, and Zip wire costing Via John Pollock.
- 20. <u>Disability Access</u>: This is an area that I feel we will have to have a closer look at in the near future, especially the entrance gate to Jubilee Field. 26/10/22: Play area gate has been attended too. **14-12-2022**: As before
- 21. <u>Single bar play equipment:</u> We have accepted an estimate from Richard Garwood & Sons to have the hollow in the ground levelled and seeded. And they are supplying a section of rubber stabilizing matt Free of Charge. This will make a <u>saving</u> of approximately £200.00.
- c) LHP form for speeding in the village Cllr C. Thorne to supply the Clerk with information to complete the form
- **198/2022** Parish Councillor vacancies update from the Parish Clerk The Clerk informed the meeting that no applications had been received
- **199/2022** Planning Application/s. No planning applications have been submitted to MDC
- 200/2022 Decision/s made by MDC affecting St. Lawrence FUL/MAL/22/00693- 19 Mountview Crescent St Lawrence Essex CM0 7NT Replacement dwelling. <u>REFUSE</u>
- 201/2022 Appeal/s made affecting St. Lawrence. No Appeals have been submitted
- **202/2022** Grant Applications To receive any Grant Applications submitted to the Clerk
 - 1) St. Lawrence Newland Church St. Lawrence for £600
- Cllr C. Thorne proposed and Cllr A. Gardner seconded to authorise this Grant Application. **All Agreed**
 - 2) St. Lawrence Village Hall for £600
- Cllr C. Thorne proposed and Cllr A. Gardner seconded to authorise this Grant Application. **All Agreed** except for Cllr M. Gibson who abstained

203/2022 Finance

- **a.** To receive the Bank reconciliations as at 30^{th.} November 2022 Councillors noted the Bank reconciliations as at 30^{th.} November 2022
- **b.** To receive the comparison of Actual to Budgeted for 2022/23 Councillors noted the comparison of Actual to Budgeted for 2022/23
- **c.** To approve the payment of Accounts for December 2022 and to agree a transfer of funds to meet the Parish Council financial requirements. **All Agreed**
- **d.** To approve the charges of using the car park on a weekly basis Cllr J. Pollock The Clerk to supply Cllr J. Pollock with the SLPC bank details. The start date being 1st. January 2023

204/2022 2023/2024 Budget

Councillors discussed and finalised the Council's anticipated expenditure for 2023/2024 Cllr J. Pollock proposed and Cllr A. Gardner seconded to accept the 2023/2024 expenditure budget of £35,854 for 2023/2024. **All Agreed**

205/2022 2023/24 Precept

Councillors discussed and finalised the Council's Precept for 2023/24

Cllr M. Gibson proposed and Cllr A. Gardner seconded to accept the 2023/2024 Precept of £33,214 which using the supplied MDC Tax Base figure of 590.0 meant that a Band D property would be £55.45p an increase of £0.16p per year. **All Agreed**

Councillors discussed to authorise the RFO to complete the appropriate Precept demand on Maldon District Council as and when required by MDC (2nd. January 2023).

Cllr J. Pollock proposed and Cllr M. Gibson seconded to authorise the RFO to complete and send the appropriate Precept demand on Maldon District Council by 2nd. January 2023.

206/2022 Councillors to list any defective streetlights with location/s in the village None reported

207/2022 Councillors to note 2023 meeting dates

25.01.23: 22.02.23: 22.03.23: 26.04.23: 24.05.23: 28.06.23: 26.07.23: 27.09.23: 25.10.23: 22.11.23: 13.12.23

208/2022 Items for Next Agenda

A&J Lighting access to CCTV mast and camera

209/2022 Next meeting will be held on 25th. January 2023 at 7pm in the village hall

210/2022 Closure of the Meeting

To close the Meeting having considered and determined all items of business.

The Chairman then closed the meeting at 8.10pm and thanked everyone for attending.